NUREG/IA-0058 AEEW-R2435 PWR/PKWG/P(88)390



International Agreement Report

RELAP5/MOD2 Analysis of LOFT Experiment L9–3

Prepared by J. C. Birchley

WINFRITH United Kingdom Atomic Energy Authority Dorchester, Dorset, DT2 8DH United Kingdom

Office of Nuclear Regulatory Research U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission Washington, DC 20555

April 1992

Prepared as part of The Agreement on Research Participation and Tochnical Exchange under the International Thermal-Hydraulic Code Assessment and Application Program (ICAP)

Published by U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission

> 7205140254 920430 PDR NUREG IA-0058 R PDR

NOTICE

This report was prepared under an international cooperative agreement for the exchange of technical information. Neither the United States Government nor any agency thereof, or any of their employees, makes any warranty, expressed or implied, or assumes any legal liability or responsibility for any third party's use, or the results of such use, of any information, apparatus product or process disclosed in this report, or represents that its use by such third party would not infringe privately owned rights.

Available from

Superintendent of Documents U.S. Government Printing Office P.O. Box 37082 Washington, D.C. 20013-7082

and

National Technical Information Service Springfield, VA 22161

NUREG/IA-0058 AEEW-R2435 PWR/PKWG/P(88)390



International Agreement Report

RELAP5/MOD2 Analysis of LOFT Experiment L9–3

Prepared by J. C. Birchley

WINFRITH United Kingdom Atomic Energy Authority Dorchester, Dorset, DT2 8DH United Kingdom

Office of Nuclear Regulatory Research U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission Washington, DC 20555

April 1992

Prepared as part of The Agreement on Research Participation and Technical Exchange under the International Thermal-Hydraulic Code Assessment and Application Program (ICAP)

Published by U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission

NOTICE

This report is based on work performed under the sponsorship of the United Kingdom Atomic Energy Authority. The information in this report has been provided to the USNRC under the terms of the International Code Assessment and Application Program (ICAP) between the United States and the United Kingdom (Admini: trative Agreement - WH 36047 between the United States Nuclear Regulatory Commission and the United Kingdom Atomic Energy Authority Relating ation in the Field of Modelling of Loss of Coolant to Coll. Accidents, February 1985). The United Kingdom has consented to the publication of this report as a USNRC document in order to allow the widest possible circulation among the reactor safety community. Neither the United States Government nor the United Kingdom or any agency thereof, or any of their employees, makes any warranty, expressed or implied, or assumes any legal liability of responsibility for any third party's use, or the results of such use, or any information, apparatus, product or process disclosed in this report, or represents that its use by such third party would not infringe privately owned rights.

AEEW-R2435 PWR/PKWG/P(88)390

RELAP5/MOD2 analysis of LOFT Experiment L9-3

J.C.Birchley

Abstract

An analysis has been performed of LOFT Experiment L9-3, a loss-of-feedwater anticipated transient without trip, in order to support the validation of RELAP5/MOD2.

Experiment L9-3 exhibited a rapid boldown of the steam generat \therefore following the loss of feed, with the reactor remaining close to its initial power until the steam generator tubes became sufficiently uncovered for primary to secondary heat transfer to be significantly reduced. The ensuing heat up of the primary fluid resulted in a reduction in power induced by the moderator feedback. The primary system pressure increased to the safety relief valve setpoint, before the fall in reactor power allowed the mismatch between primary system heat input and heat removal via the steam generator to be accommodated by cycling of the pilot operated relief valve (PORV).

Comparison between calculation and data shows generally good agreement, though with discrepancies in some areas. Weaknesses in the code's treatment of interphase drag and in the representation of the pressuriser spray are indicated, although a shortage of definitive data, particularly in the steam generator, may also be a factor. The overprediction of interphase drag led to a tendency to underpredict the initial inventory in the steam generator and also, perhaps, to overpredict the steam generator heat transfer while the tubes were being uncovered. There is indication that the pressuriser vapour region conditions were close to equilibrium during spray operation. The point kinetics model in RELAP5/MOD2 proved a viable means of representing the power history for this transient.

AEE Winfrith December 1988 AEEW-R2435

Contents

1.	INTRODUCTION
2.	THE LOSS-OF-FLUID TEST (LOFT) FACILITY
	2.1. Facility Description
	2.2. Scaling and Related Considerations
3.	DESCRIPTION OF EXPERIMENT L9-3
	3.1. Objectives of Experiment L9-3
	3.2. Conduct of Experiment L9-3
	3.3. Summary of Transient
4.	RELAP5/MOD2 MODEL OF THE LOFT FACILITY
5.	RELAP5/MOD2 CALCULATIONS OF LOFT EXPERIMENT L9-3
	5.1. Initial Conditions
	5.2. Transient Calculations
	5.2.1. Preliminary Calculation
	5.2.2. Revised Calculation
6.	DISCUSSION
	6.1. General
	6.2. Primary to secondary heat transfer
	6.3. Pressuriser reponse
	6.4. Mass and energy flows through relief valves
	6.5. Shortage of experiment data
	6.6. Code problems
	6.7. Run-time characteristics
7,	CONCLUSIONS
8	REFERENCES

Figures

Figure 1 A	exonometric Projection of LOFT System
Figure 2 R	ELAP5/MOD2 Noding Diagram for LOFT
E	Experiment L9-3
Figure 3 C	Comparison of LOFT Core reactivity with Sizewell
	B' at End-of-life
Figure 4 I	.9-3 HOT LEG PRESSURE
Figure 5 L	.9-3 HOT AND COLD LEG TEMPERATURE
Figure 6 1	.9-3 PRESSURISER LEVEL
Figure 7 I	.9-3 REACTOR POWER
Figure 8 I	.9-3 REACTOR POWER VS COOLANT
1	TEMPEP ATURE
Figure 9 1	.9-3 STEAM GENERATOR PRESSURE
Figure 10	L9-3 STEAM GENERATOR LEVEL
Figure 11	L9-3 STEAM FLOW
Figure 12	L9-3 STEAM GENERATOR HEAT TRANSFER
Figure 13	L9-3 SG HEAT TRANSFER VS LEVEL
Figure 14	L9-3 HOT LEG PRESSURE - EFFECT OF
	MODEL CHANGES
Figure 15	L9-3 HOT LEG PRESSURE - REVISED
	MODEL
Figure 16	L9-3 HOT AND COLD LEG TEMPERATURE -
	REVISED MODEL
Figure 17	L9-3 REACTOR POWER - REVISED MODEL
Figure 18	L9-3 STEAM GENERATOR PRESSURE -
	REVISED MODEL
Figure 19	L9-3 STEAM GENERATOR LEVEL - REVISED
	MODEL
Figure 20	L9-3 STEAM FLOW - REVISED MODEL
Figure 21	L9-3 STEAM GENERATOR HEAT TRANSFER
	- REVISED MODEL
Figure 22	L9-3 CALCULATED LIQUID FRACTION IN
	RISER NODES - REVISED MODEL
Figure 23	L9-3 CALCULATED HEAT TRANSFER IN
	RISER NODES - REVISED MODEL
Figure 24	19-3 PRESSURISER PRESSURE VS LEVEL -
	EFFECT OF EQUILIBRIUM
Figure 25	L9-3 PRESSURISER LEVEL -EFFECT OF
	EQUILIBRUM

Figure	26	L9-3 HOT LEG PRESSURE - EFFECT OF FOUILIBRIUM	41
Figure	27	L9-3 RELIEF LINE FLOW - EFFECT OF INCREASED DISCHARGE	42
Figure	28	L9-3 "OT LEG PRESSURE - EFFECT OF INCREASED DISCHARGE	43

Tables

Table 1		Initial Conditions for Experiment L9-3	1.00
Table 2	2	Sequence of Events for Experiment I 9-3	13
		The second	1.4

81

pO

D

1. INTRODUCTION

The thermal-bydraulic computer code RELAP5 is to be used for the independent assessment of the Sizewell 'B' PWK with respect to design basis intact primary circuit fulls and srall break loss-of-coolant accients. In order to validate the RELAP5 code, a series of estalyses of integral experiments is being performed using RELAP5/MOD2. This paper presents an analysis of LOFT Experiment L9-3, which was a simulated loss-of-feedwater anticipated transient without trip performed under the auspices of the USNRC. In this transient all feedwater was lost to the stearn generator but the control rods fail to drop into the reactor core. The transient exhibited a number of features and phenomena that may occur following certain design basis accidents in Sizewell 'B', and which the code must be capable of representing. The phenomena of concern (Ref. 1) are:

- · Decrease in SG heat ironsfer as secondary side boils down
- * SG heat transfer during single phase forced circulation
- · Pressure response during pressuriser insurge
- * Mass and energy flows through relief valves
- · Pressure response during operation of pressuriser spray

This report describes the RELAP5/MOD2 analysis of L9-3 and examines the code's ability to represent the phenomena listed above. The LOFT facility and its scaling relative to a commercial PWR are described in Section 2, and the conduct and course of Experiment L9-3 are described in Section 3. Sections 4 and 5 present the description of the RELAP5/MOD2 input model for the experiment and the calculations performed. The phenomena of interest are discussed in Section 6.

2. THE LOSS-OF-FLUID TEST (LOFT) FACILITY

The LOFT facility was a 50 MW (thermal) PWR (Fig. 1) designed to simulate the system response of a commercial PWR during loss-of-coolant accidents and intact primary circuit transients. The LOFT facility incorporated the major functional components of the primary and secondary systems of a commercial PWR, and instrumentation to measure the thermal-hydraulic and nuclear conditions in detail. The LOFT facility is described in detail in Reference 2.

2.1. Facility Description

The main features of LOFT are summarised as follows:

- i. A reactor vessel with an annular downcomer, a lower plenum, an upper plenum, and a nuclear core with lower and upper support structure.
- An intact loop with an active steam generator, pressuriser, and two primary coolant pumps connected in parallel.
- iii. A broken (passive) loop containing pipework with resistance and elevation changes designed to simulate the steam generator and pump, and two quick- opening blowdown valve assemblies (the steam generator and pump simulators were disconnected for experiment L9-3).
- iv. A blowdown suppression system consisting of a header, suppression tank and a spray system. All fluid discharge from the primary coolant system was directed to the blowdown suppression tank. The blowdown suppression system was designed to simulate the pressure response of the containment duing a lossof-coolant accident and did not significantly affect experiment L9-3.
- v. An emergency core coolant (ECC) injection system consisting of two low head injection of m (LHIS) pumps, two high head injection system (HHIS) pumps, and two accumulators, and the associated pipe-

work. The FCC system was not used in Experiment 1.9-3.

vi. A pressure relief line from the top of the pressuriser to the blowdown suppression tank, containing a relief valve with two open positions designed to represent the scaled discharge capacity of a power operated relief valve (PORV) in the first position, and the combined capacity of a PORV and a safety relief valve (SRV) in the second position, for a commercial PWR.

2.2. Scaling and Related Considerations

The LOFT facility was scaled to a commercial 4-loop PWR on the basis of power, volume, and flow. Not all of the components in LOFT were scaled by the same amount, however, and the elevation changes in LOFT were significantly less than the corresponding ones in a commercial PWR. For a transient such - L9-3, the features of the configuration for which scaling is most important are listed below, with the corresponding ratios:

Pov er ratio		68:1
Primary coolant system volume ratio		44:1
Pressuriser volume ratio		52:1
Pressuriser PORV and SRV relief capacity	approx	45:1

The LOFT facility is slightly oversized in comparison with the power scaling but not enough to alter the essential nature of the transient response. Other facility characteristics important for this transient are:

- * Core reactivity
- · Recirculation ratio in steam generator
- * Steam generator elevation

The LOFT core is (naturally) smaller than a commercial PWR core, and as a consequence was subject to greater leakage of neutrons and larger radial peaking factors. A higher enrichment (4%) of U-235 was accordingly used in the LOFT fuel rods. The LOFT core was ilso irradiated for sufficient time only to establish required decay heat levels for each experiment, with the moult that the burnup was roughly equivalent to an early stage of irradiation for a PWR. The combination of higher enrichment and low accumulated irradiation meant that the moderator void coefficient was representative of a commercial PWR core near the end of a cycle. In those circumstances the core is also in its least reactive (operating) state and the ATWT is less severe than it otherwise would be.

The steam generator characteristics of potentially most importance during a loss-of-feedwater transient are the recirculation ratio and height, since they have the biggest infuence on the changes in secondary side heat transfer conditions. The riser section is approximately one-third the height of a commercial PWR steam generator riser but the recirculation ratio is similar in magnitude to that in a commercial PWR. The transient thermal-hydraulic response (timing and rate of beat transfer degradation) will probably be somewhat different for LOFT and for a commercial PWR, but the governing processes are likely to be same.

The LOFT facility was subject to a number of scaling and other configurational distortions in the primary coolant system - e.g. elevation of the loop and core, presence of "dead" volumes in the broken loop. These are significant in small break LOCA transients and have a major influence on the phenomena occurring. They are much less important in an intert circuit fault transier't such as L9-3, where issues such at liquid/vepour distribution, transition to natural circulation and counter-current flow did not arise.

A major difference between LOFT and a commercial plant is in the height of the pressuriser. The LOFT pressuriser was approximately one-seventh the height of a commercial PWR pressuriser, so that the interface between the liquid and vapour regions (and hence any thermal-hydraulic coupling between them), and also the potential for liquid insurging into the pressuriser to mix, are more important in L9-3.

From the above considerations, it is concluded that the L9-3 data are suitable for code validation in respect of the phenomena identified in section 1, with the provisos that the pressuring dynamics need to be carefully examined and that L9-3 is relevant only to symmetric loss-of-feedwater transmuts.

3. DESCRIPTION OF EXPERIMENT L9-3

Experiment L9-3, which was performed on 7 April 1982, simulated a loss-of-feedwater accident without reactor trip and was the first of two ATWT experiments performed in LOFT. The test is described in detail in references 3 and 4. A brief description is given below.

3.1. Objectives of Experiment L9-3

The programmatic objectives of Experiment L9-3 were to:

- Provide experimental data for benchmarking PWR vendor's ATWT computer codes as required by the NRC proposed ATWT rule (USNRC-SECY-80-409).
- Evaluate alternative methods of achieving long-term shutdown (without the insection of control rods) during an ATWT event, to address concerns defined in the proposed staff rule (Federal Register Vol. 46, No. 226).

3.2. Conduct of Experiment L9-3

The experiment was performed in two phases. For the first 600 secs of the transient only automatic plant protection systems were simulated. This phase corresponds to the period of 10 minutes during which time the automatic systems are required, in U.S. practice, to maintain the plant in a safe condition, with no credit taken for operator intervention. This first phase provided the data relevant to code validation (corresponding to the first programmatic objective), and is the portion of the experiment analysed in the present study.

The initial conditions for Experiment L9-3 are listed in Table 1, and were representative of nominal PWR operating conditions. The experiment were initiated by terminating all feedwater delivery to the steam generator. The following conditions applied during the transient:

- All reactor trip setpoints (low steam generator liquid level, high pressure or temperature in the hot leg of the primary coolant system, etc.) were inactivated, and the transient was allowed to proceed for 10 minutes with no operator intervention.
- * The pressuriser spray, PORV and SRV were operated according to primary coolant system pressure setpoints.
- The main steam control valve was closed when the steam generator had boiled partially dry (as indicated by a lagh primary pressure reading).
- The main stear: bypass valve was cycled on high steam generator pressure to simulate the action of the steam generator safety relief valves.
- . The primary coolant pumps continued to be operated.

At the end of this period, the reactor operators initiated a controlled recovery which consisted of primary system feed (with highly borated liquid) and bleed, and secondary system cooldown (via cycling of the feedwater supply). The control rods remained in the normal full power position during the ATWT and recovery phases of the transient.

3.3. Summary of Transient

The sequence of events is described briefly as follows:

After turning off the main feed vater pump, the feed flow started to decrease from its initial value. This was designated as the reference time zero. The primary to secondary heat transfer degraded slightly almost immediately due to the loss of subcooling of the secondary coolant, induced by the loss of feedwater. This caused the primary coolant temperatures and the secondary side pressure to increase slowly during the first 50 seconds of the transfert.

The rise in primary coolant temperature caused the fluid to expand and there was a slow insurge into the pressuriser, with a consequent rise in primary system pressure. This caused the pressuriser spray to begin cycling at 30 s.

The secondary side coolant continued to boil off with the result that the tubes started to uncover at about 30 s. The primary to secondary heat transfer then began to degrade more rapidly, such that the primary coolant temperature increase, and the insurge to the pressuriser, resulted in a pressure rise that exceeded the capacity of the pressuriser spray to control. At 74 s the pressuriser PORV opened.

As the steam generator boiled dry, the initial increase in secondary side pressure was reversed, as insufficient steam was now being generated to maintain pressure. The main steam control valve was closed at 67.3 s, with the steam generator liquid level slightly above the bottom of the indicating range and the tubes substantially uncovered. Following closure of the courol valve, the secondary pressure increased again to the steam bypass valve setpoint. The small amount of continuing steam generation was then balanced by the bypass flow during two cycles of valve opening and by the leakage of steam through the main iteam control valve.

The pressuriser liquid level meanwhile continued to rise and reached the top of the indicating range at 90 s. The subsequent increase in discharge fluid density resulted in a PORV volumetric flow that was less than the primary coolant rate of expansion. This mismatch caused the primary system pressure to increase again, reaching the SRV setpoint at 107 s, after which the combined SRV and PORV capacities were sufficient to maintain the pressure at or below the SRV setpoint.

The increase in primary coolant temperature also reduced the reactor power via the feedback on the moderator temperature and density. As a result, the primary coolant heat source/heat sink imbalance reduced to the extent that after the SRV had cycled once, the PORV alone was sufficient to to control the system pressure. The transient continued with the PORV cycling and reactor power decreasing until an approximate balance was achieved between the primary heat source and sink at about 200 s, after which cycling of the PORV ceased. During the following 400 s, the primary pressure and temperature remained approximately constant, at 15.7 MPa and 595 K, repectively.

At 600 s, the reactor operators initiated a controlled recovery by (a) starting injection of 7000 ppm borated water into the primary coolant system from the high head injection system. (b) starting injection of feedwater to the steam generator, and (c) latching open the PORV. This operation successfully recovered the plant and returned the intact loop hot leg temperature to 583 & at 1080 s. This recovery phase of the experiment is not analysed in the present study. The significant events monitored during the transient are detailed in Table 2.

4. RELAP5/MOD2 MODEL OF THE LOFT FACILITY

The code version used for the analysis of Experiment L9-3 was RELAP5/MOD2 Cycle 36.05 UK Version E03. The code is described in references 5 and 6; UK modifications incorporated into Version E03 are summarised in the output from running the code version.

The input model (Ref 7) was based on that previously used by CEGB GDCD for analysis of LOFT loss-of-feed Experiment LP-FW-1 (Ref 8) and loss of on- and off-site power ATWT Experiment L9-4 (Ref 9). The noding diagram for the calculations is shown in figure 2. The following experiment features were included in the input

- 4 -

model:

- i. The pumps were kept running throughout the transient.
- ii. The pressuriser spray was operated.
- iii. The experimental pressuriser relief valve assembly was designed to operate in two positions, to represent the relief capacity of a single PORV, and of a PORV and SRV combined. This was represented in the input model by a SRV and PORV which were modelled as trip valves that would be either fully open or fully closed in relation to the setpoints. The flow areas of the PORV and SRV were specified to provide steam flows of 0.66 kg/s at a pressure of 16.2 MPa with the experimental relief valve in the first PORV) position, and a flow of 1.52 kg/s at a pressure of 17.2 MPa in the second position.
- iv. The auxiliary feedwater was disabled.
- v. The steam generator and pump simulators were replaced by a blind flange in Experiment L9-3. The nodes representing the simulators and the pipework downstream thereof were deleted in the input model used for the analysis.
- vi. As stated in section 2.2 the LOFT core moderator feedback characteristics were typical of a commercial PWR at end-of-life conditions. The moderator void and temperature reactivity data provided in the RE-LAP5 deck for LOFT had been specified on the basis of core physics calculations performed at INEL to support safety analysis of LOFT experiments and had been used in their own post-test analysis of L9-3. In order to confirm that the data given are in fact representative of end-of-life conditions, they were compared with the predicted reactivity obtained by core physics calculations for Sizewell 'B' (Ref. 6). From Figure 3, it can be seen that the LOFT model data are at least comparable with the Sizewell prediction at zero loading of boron. The reactivity data were used in conjunction with the RELAP5/MOD2 point kinetics model instead of specifying the power as a function of time. This provides representation of the power reduction as driven by the moderator feedback, and ensures that the power transient is consistent with the thermal-hydraulic transient.
- vii. Decay heat was calculated by by the code's default decay heat model, which employs the ANS 1973 decay heat data, together with a user specified multiplier (in this case, unity) reflecting best estimate or consevative decay heat levels. Inspection of the calculated decay heat levels shows fair agreement with those quoted in the L9-3 data report, bearing in mind that the quoted levels are based on an assumption of scram occurring at 400 s.

RELAP5/MOD2 CALCULATIONS OF LOFT EXPERIMENT L9-3

This section describes two calculations for L9-3. The first calculation employed the same input deck as was used in the analysis of L9-4, with the changes described above. The second calculation was performed using an input deck with a number of further changes designed to simulate the experiment more closely.

5.1. Initial Conditions

Prior to performing the transient calculation, a steady state calculation was performed in which the RELAP5 control logic was used to adjust the pump speed, feedwater flow, secondary pressure, steam generator level, and primary system pressure. A short null transient calculation was then carried out to confirm that the steady state was fully converged. The initial conditions obtained at the end of the null transient are compared with the experiment initial conditions in Table 1. Agreement is seen to be satisfactory bearing in mind that there is some uncertainty in the data for the liquid and vapour volumes in the pressuriser. The calculation sought to match the latest information from INEL for the pressuriser dimensions.

.5.

5.2. Transient Calculations

5.2.1. Preliminary Calculation

The first calculation was performed with the RELAP5 input model unchanged from the form used for the analysis of LOFT Experiment L9-4 performed by CEGB Barov od. The only changes made to the input were those corresponding to the initial and boundary conditions for Experiment L9-3. The objectives in performing an initial calculation with an unchanged model were:

- * to assess the degree to which the input model used previously is uniformly applicable over a range of conditions.
- * to provide a baseling calculation from which improvements or sensitivity calculations can be made.

It was decided to run the initial calculation, at least at first, for just the early part of the transient in order to make a preliminary assessment of the model. Figures 4, 5 and 6 compare the experimental and calculated primary system pressure, the cold leg and hot leg temperatures, and the pressuriser liquid level. The effect of the loss-of-feedwater is first indicated in the primary system after about 5s, as the loop temperatures and pressure begin to rise. The calculation follows the experiment data quite well during the early stages, to about 40 s, although the initial increase in temperature is slightly more marked in the calculation. The calculated pressure transient first devine s from the data at 24 s, when the pressuriser spray flow was initiated prematurely in the calculation, as us spray set point was specified according to the experiment the pressure then fell rapidly, such that the spray tripped off a few seconds later, to be followed by two further cycles of spray initiation. The calculation The calculation at reduction in pressure, with the result that the spray flow continued for the remainder of the transient. This contrast between calculation and data has been reported in many RELAP5 analyses of LOFT transients, for example reference 8.

The discrepancy between calculation and data for the primary system pressure following spray initiation tends to mask the comparison generally. As can be seen from figure 5, the coolant temperatures continue to remain in good agreement until the boildown of the steam generator leads to a general degradation in primary to secondary heat transfer. Since the pumps were running throughout the transient, the heat transfer is essentially controlled by the secondary side conditions, rather than the primary and secondary sides as it was in L9-4. A second rise in coolant temperatures began at about 50 s, with a steady increase in the rise rate as the steam generator tubes became progressively uncovered. The onset of the degradation was slightly delayed in the calculation, but once initiated the primary coolant temperatures increased more rapidly than in the experiment. The hot leg temperature increase was less dramatic than in the cold leg, since the power reduction induced by the moderator feedback led to a smaller rise in temperature across the core. The pressuriser level provides an indication of the average coolant temperature in the primary system. As can be seen from figure 6, the level increases more sharply in the calculation than in the experiment, but at the time the (measured) level was at the top of the indicating range, the they were almost coincident. This appears to be at variance with both the coolant temperatures in the loops and and system pressure. There may be processes occurring in the pressuriser that are not adequately modelled (such as the effect of spray flow).

The calculated and measured powers are compared in figure 7. The calculated power fell slightly more just after the start of the transient, reflecting the slightly more pronounced early temperature increase. The nature of the later power transients also reflects the respective coolant temperature histories. It is worth noting that the total heat generation in the core during the first 100 s was less in the calculation than in the experiment, but the calculated coolant temperatures rose by a greater amount. Therefore the total heat transferred to the secondary side was less in the calculation than in the experiment. The reason(s) for this may be either too little initial inventory in the steam generator or a degradation in heat transfer at the transing inventory. This will be examined in the analysis of the secondary side conditions, to follow In order to check the modelling of reactivity, the reactor power is plotted in figure 8 against coolant temperature is the cold leg, for both the calculation and data. Because of the difference in temperature histories, exact agreement could bot occur, even if the neutronics were repesented exactly. The closeness of the curves, however indicates that the reactivity was modelled adequately for the purpose of this study, at least.

Attention is turned now to the conditions in the steam generator, in order to understand the factors that caused the observed primary coolant system transient, and to explain some of the differences between the calculation and data. The secondary pressure history is shown in figure 9. Following the loss-of-feedwater, the pressure increased gradually (atter a short delay corresponding to the time over which the feed flow terminated and the transit time between the injection point and the boiler.) The pressure increased us subcooling was lost from the liquid entering the bottom of the boiler. As a result, rather more steam was generated for the same quantity of heat transferred across the tubes. The secondary pressure then began to restabilise at a slightly higher value, and with a steam generation rate and flow also slightly higher. The initial increase in pressure was slightly more marked in the calculation, and dhis led to the correspondingly more marked initial increase in primary coolant temperatures. There was no apparent degradation in heat transfer until about 50 s, at which time the pressure began to fall as the rate of steam generation dropped.

At 67.3 s the main steam control valve began to close. Further steam generation then caused the pressure to rise once again until the steam bypass valve was manually operated to limit the pressure. The calculated fall in pressure occurred a few seconds later than shown by the ^Aata, but was much more dramatic, as if steam generation suddenly ceased. In the calculation the pressure fell to 2.5 MPa compared with 4.5 MPa in the experiment.

Figure 10 shows the steam generator downcomer collapsed level, for which there was excellent agreement between calculation and data for the first 30 s. From then until the MSCV was closed the calculated level decreased more rapidly than the measured level, suggesting there may have been too small a flow area within either the downcomer or boiler, and hence too small an initial inventory in the calculation. In the experiment the level was just above the bottom of the indicating range at 67.3 s, whereas the steam generator was almost empty in the calculation. From this we may deduce that either of both the following states applied:

- i. the calculated initial inventory was too small.
- ii. good hear transfer was maintained in the calculation at inventories below that at which degradation occurred in the experiment.

These deductions are confirmed by figures 11, and 12, which compare the calculated and experimental steam flow, and primary to secondary heat transfer, respectively. As can be seen, the integrated steam flow is less in the calculation, despite the fact that there was less liquid remaining in the steam generator when the MSCV was closed. The plot of heat transfer as a function of steam generator level, figure 13, shows even more clearly that the calculated heat transfer remained almost unchanged during the boildown until the steam generator was almost empty.

5.2.2. Revised Calculation

In order to try to resolve the discrepancies between calculation and data, and determine whether they were due to weaknesses in the code or in the input model, a number of changes were made to the input model as follows:

- The bottom nule in the boiler and downcomer of the steam generator were subdivided into two, to seek a more gradual degradation in heat transfer.
- The flow area in the lower part of the steam generator downcomer was increased in line with engineering data on the LOFT facility (Ref 10).

-7-

iii. The P w resistance of the steam generator was reduced to increase the circulation ratio. (This and the prev or change were intended to increase the initial inventory in the steam generator.)

iv. Adjustment of the trip settings to match more closely the measured conditions at actuation.

The calculation was run to 600 s. The revised model gave results that are qualitatively similar to the original model, but with the steam generator boiling dry stightly later. The primary system pressure history calculated using both models is compared with the data in figure 14. The revised calculation is compared with data for the period to 600 s in figure 15. The effect of slightly higher pressure for spray initiation, and the higher initial steam generator liquid inventory results in slightly better timings for key events, but the general course of the transient is not significantly changed. Surprisingly, the rapidity of the pressure increase as the steam generator boils dry is not changed. The comparisons for the hot and cold leg fluid temperatures show a shift in time by a few seconds, reflecting the higher steam generator inventory. These quantities are shown in figure 16. The shape of the power history is essentially the same as in the previous calculation. However, there is a temporary decrease in primary coolant temperature at about the time of MSCV closure that caused a slight increase in power, but use total power generated is closer to the experiment, as shown by figure 17.

Although the calculated pressure rise after about 60 s is still too rapid, and the timings for initiation of PORV and SRV cycling consequently too early, it is useful to compare the calculated and measured pressure histories for the remainder of the transient. The calculation constrasted with the data in that (i) the SRV was calculated to open before the pressurise had filled with liquid, (ii) the pressure transient was brought under control (by PORV cycling) considerably later than it was in the experiment. Cycling of the PORV between the open and close setpoints maintained pressure between those points, as occurred in the experiment but with much longer duration.

The steam generator pressure and level are compared in figure 18 and 19, respectively. The revised pressure history is in better agreement, mainly because the pressure had not fallen so far, and slightly more liquid was remaining, at the time of MSCV closure. One of the changes to the model was that the MSCV was closed at the same pressure as obtained in the experiment. The time of closure, however, was almost identical, apparently because the total heat transfer 1, and hence steam generated up to this point, were in close agreement with experiment. This is confirmed by figure 20, while compares calculated and measured steam flows. However, the steam generator pressure did not rise to the steam bypass setpoint in the calculation, so there was no bypass flow calculated.

Agreement for primary to secondary heat transfer, shown in figure 21, was not greatly different, apart from the later onset of heat transfer degradation. The finer noding at the bottom of the steam generator was expected to result in smoother degradation in heat transfer as the tubes uncovered. Instead, the deat transfer was more unstable, possibly by tause there was more liquid remaining when the MSCV was closed.

6. DISCUSSION

The transient calculation is now discussed in general, and in respect of particular aspects of interest.

6.1. General

The RELAPS/MOD2 calculation gave a reasonable simulation () the experiment, though with some discrepancy for particular aspects of the transient. The first 60 s were well predicted, except for the sharp drop in pressure following spray initiation. The most important factor controlling the transient is the primary to secondary beat transfer during boildown of the steam generator. This affects the balance (or imbalance) between primary system beat input and removal which, in turn, dictates the primary coolant temperature transient, the pressure transfer transfer transfer transfer during boildown of the steam generator.

- 8 -

sient, and the timings for PORV and SRV opening and closing. In particular the calculated steam generator heat transfer was only about ten percent of the decay heat level. The actual heat transfer is difficult to quantify from the data, but there is indication (e.g. figers 2...) that it was being underpredicted in the calculation.

The moderator driven power reduction eventually restored the primary system heat balance. The balance was reached somewhat later in the calculation than in the experiment, but both exhibited a period in which the pressure was controlled by cycling of the PCRV. Subsequently losses to the environment and metalwork, and steam flow through the (leaking) MSCV were sufficient to remove the decay heat with the PORV closed. During this period slow changes in primary pressure occurred as the relative magnitudes of these factors varied. The calculation did not match the data exactly during this last stage of the transient, but the differences are probably explainable in terms of uncertainty in steam leakage and in the amount of liquid remaining in the secondary side after cycling of the bypass valve.

A consequence of the differences between calculation and data is that the timings of key events, and their order are different. This is more apparent in Experiment L9-3 than it was in L9-4 because of the greater number of events happening within a short space of time. The timing of the events influenced the boundary conditions (e.g. spray flow), so that comparison of the code via comparison of the pressure trace is complicated.

6.2. Primary to secondary heat transfer

The most ψ_{ij} is cant discrepancy between calculation and data was the rate at which the primary to secondary heat transfer ungraded as the steam generator boiled dry. The calculation exhibited an undiminished heat transfer until the boildown was almost complete, whereupon these was a sudden drop in heat transfer, and a consequent increase in primary system pressure. The heat transfer history is affected by two factors: (i) the relation between heat transfer and remaining inventory, (ii) the initial inventory.

Comparison between the first calculation and the data shows the primary to secondary heat transfer to fall prematurely as well as too sharply. Inspection of the steam flow confirms that the initial inventory must have been too small by at least 100 kg (about five percent) and very probably more. The main factors that affect the initial inventory are (i) the configuration of the steam generator, (ii) the recirculation ratio, (iii) the interphase drag, and (iv) the subcooled void. The effect of changes made to the input model to increase the inventory are shown in figure 20, which shows the total steam flow up to the time of MSCV closure to be close to experiment. The initial inventory was probably adll too small since comparison of the level indicate an underestimate of liquid remaining at the time of MSCV closure. Since the changes made were as large as was thought to be sensible, there remains the likelihood that shortcomings in the interphase drag and subcooled void models resulted in too high a void fraction initially in the riser.

The sudden nature of the drop in steam generator heat transfer was thought to be due to use of too coarse a nodalisation. The smearing of the liquid over each fluid cell means that too large an area of the tubes remains wetted until the fluid conditions change to these corresponding to dryout. Subdividing the nodes at the bottom of the steam generator was expected to reduce this effect. However the behaviour proves ω be essentially as before. Figures 22 and 23 show the calculated liquid fraction and heat transfer in each node in the riser. Prior to closure of the MSCV, the liquid fractions decreased more or less tegether, so that instea. I showing a sequential emptying, the liquid was still smeared to a large extent. As a result the heat transfer remained high in all the nodes until they were all nearly empty, whereupon the heat transfer fell sharply in all of them. This appears to be astributable to an overestimate of interphase drag, so that liquid is curried up into the higher nodes.

The heat transfer fluctuated considerably during the later stages of the boildown. This was due, in part, to the redistribution of a quantity of liquid in the downcomer at the time of MSCV closure, temporarily increasing the amount of liquid in the riser, and in part to the tendency of the code to predict large changes in local heat transfer as a fluid cell empties.

6.3. Pressuriser reponse

An additional discrepancy is the rate at which the primary pressure increased as the pressuriser filled. For a given level increase, RELAP5/MOD2 calculated a pressure that was greater than shown by the experiment data. A contributing factor is the underprediction of the heat removed from the vapour by the spray. In order to assess the possible magnitude of this effect, a further sensitivity calculation not to be regarded as a best estimate, was performed in which the pressuriser was assumed to be in equilibrium from the time at which the spray flow was initiated. This assumption maximises the beat transferred from the vapour to the liquid, and should certainly overstate it, in fact. The resulting pressuriser leve, and pressure transferred are shown in figures 4.25 and 26.

Prior to spra, flow the rise in pressure with level is accurately calculated. Following spray actuation, there is a drop in pressure not effectively simulated, followed by a rise with level with a lesser gradient than before. Invoking equilibrium in the pressuriser at the initiation of spray flow gave improvement in the relationship between level and pressure, and a closer agreement in gradient. However, the initial decrease in pressure was still too small, and there is the possibility that the liquid in the spray line was much cooler than the cold leg temperature assumed in the calculations. The effect of initial spray line temperature would last for only a few seconds of spray flow, however.

6.4. Mass and energy flows through relief valves

Assessment of the representation of mass and energy flows through the PORV and SRV is complicated because the fluid conditions in the relief line differed between experiment and calculation. The relief line flow and pressure are shown in figures 27 and 28. (A further sensitivity case in which the subcooled discharge coefficient for the PORV was increased from 1.0 to 1.8 (specifically to seek agreement with data) is displayed.) Prior to filling of the pressuriser the calculated flow rate through the PORV and SRV agreed with the specified flow for steam and with the data for the PORV flow. In the calculation the SRV opened once before the pressuriser filled, and again afterwards, whereas the SRV opened only after the pressuriser filled in the experiment.

The underestimate of the PORV flow when liquid was being discharged affected the remainder of the pressure transient, as was reflected in the extra time before the pressure was brought down to the PORV closing setpoint. The calculation with the subcooled discharge coefficient for the PORV increased to 1.8 gave (as expected) good agreement for the flow and the ensuing pressure transiert. In particular, the period during which the SRV remained open, and the time of initiation of PORV cycling was closely matched. This calculation, like the previous one with equilibrium assumed in the pressuries is intended mainly as a sensitivity, rather than a true best estimate. However, the discharge charactenistics may, in fact, be known with more containty for plant studies than for LOFT.

6.5. Shortage of experiment data

A shortcoming of the LOFT facility is the paucity of instrumentation in the steam generator. Data are not available for void distribution, mixture level, or tube temperatures in the riser, and the initial inventory and recirculation ratio is not known exactly. This makes assessment of the two fluid modelling in RELAP5/MOD2 less clear.

6.6. Code problems

The following problems with the code are noted.

 The onset of carryunder results in a surge of two-phase fluid from the downcomer to the steam dome, and an increase in vapour generation. In all the calculations here, attempt was made to suppress this by reducing the value of VUNDER such that carryunder did not occur until the steam generator was almost totally roid.

ii. The use or the MPRVLV type for PORV and spray valve actuation can cause the valve to open only partially when the setpoint is reached. This may have affected the preliminary and revised calculations in which, on close inspection, it was found that only a fraction of the full spray was occurring for a considerable time. This did not affect the conclusion concerning the relation between pressuriser pressure and level, but probably affected the pressure drop when the spray flow initiated. The size of this effect is not known, but is bounded by the calculation in which equilibrium was assumed.

6.7. Run-time characteristics

The semi-implicit numerics option was used in the calculations. Since the pumps were running, the primary flow was large enough for the calculation to be Courant limited throughout the transient. The controlling volume was the node just downstream of the pumps, cell 150-01. The calculation ran with a cpu/transient ratio of about 2.1. Calculation to 600 s required 1236 s on the Harwell Cray-2.

7. CONCLUSIONS

- Calculations have been performed of LOFT Experiment L9-3, a loss-of-feedwater anticipated transient without trip, in order to validate the code RELAP5/MOD2 for future use.
- ii. The studies show that the course of transient can be fairly well simulated, but it is necessary that the initial inventory in the steam generator be correctly calculated. (It is not certain that this has been achieved here, although for plant analysis, the initial inventory would normally be known with some confidence, even though it is uncertain for LOFT).
- iii. Several features of the transient calculated 'airly accurately, in particular the time at which steam g nerator heat sink was essentially lost (given good estimate for initial inventory), the end point of the primary coolant temperature transient, and the effect of the PORV cycling in controlling the primary pressure (given correct discharge flow).
- iv. The calculations suggest shortcomings in the RELAP5/MOD2 treatment of interphase drag. This led to too sudden a loss of steam generator heat sink which could not be overcome by repodalisation of the lower part of the steam generator.
- v. There is reason to believe that the phases may be close to equilibrium during spray operation. The calculated pressure rose too rapidly in relation to the liquid level. Thus affecting the sequence of pressuriser filling and PORV, SRV actuation, and hence the mass and energy flows. The main cause of this discrepancy appears to be the under-representation of heat removal from the vapour during spray operation.
- vi. Simulation of the event sequence and timings for this transient is fairly challenging, due to the number of events and setpoints reached in a short space of time. The uncertainty in the pressure response during spray operation, and discrepancy in the steam generator heat transfer during boildown, made it difficult to obtain exact agreement for the timings for which setpoints were reached. Calculation of the event sequence depends also on how setpoints are defined (e.g. on time, pressure in certain location, other setpoint, etc.). This could cause difficulties in some plant applications where some setpoints are defined on a condition while others might be on time.
- vii. Use of the RELAP5/MOD2 points kinetics model proved a viable means of calculating the power transient. This ensured that the reactivity and thermal hydraulic transients remained in step.

8. REFERENCES

- "RELAP5/MOD2 Validation for Sizewell 'B' Application" PWR/PKWG/P(88)393 (October 1988) 11. Hirst
- "LOFT System and Test Description (5.5 ft Nuclear Core LOCEs)" NUREG/CR-0247, TREE-1208 (July 1978) D L. Reeder
- "Experiment Data Report for LOFT Anticipated Transient Without Scram Experiment L9-3" NUREG/CR-2717, EGG-2195 (May 1982) Paul D. Bayless and Janice M. Divine.
- "Experiment Analysis and Summary Report for LOFT ATWS Experiments L9-3 and L9-4" NUT EG/CR-3417, EGG-2267 (September 1983) James P. Adams
- "RELAP\$/MOD2 Cr.de Manual" NUREG/CR-4312 (Draft), EGG-2396 (December 1985) V.H. Ransom e, 1
- "RELAP5/MOD2 Models and Correlations" (Draft) GEW-94-87 (Covering letter reference) (December 1987) R.A. Dimenna et al
- "LOFT Input Model for RELAP5/MOD2 used in U.K. Studies" AEEW-R2454 (To be issued) J.C. Birchley
- "RELAP5/MOD2 Analysis of OECD LOFT Test LP-FW-1" Internal CEGB Report (June 1988) M.G. Croxford et al
- "RELAP5/MOD2 Analysis of LOFT Experiment L9-4." Internal CEGB Report (December 1985) M.B. Keevill
- 10. "Dimensional Data Steam Generator" Private Communication from INEL

Acknowledgments

The author wishes to acknowledge the assistance of Mr. Andrew Fox in running of jobs and preparation of graphs...l output, and of CEGB Barnwood staff in providing the RELAP5/MOD2 input deck on which the calculations were based. Particular thanks are due to Mr. Graenie Nash, for advice on modelling of the reactivity using RELAP5.

DADAMETED		MEASURED	CALCULATED		
PARAMETER		MEASURED	PRELIMINARY	REVISED	
PRIMARY COOLANT SYSTEM					
Mass flow	kg/s	467.6	467.7	467.7	
Hot les pressure	MPa	14.98	14.95	14.94	
Temperature across core	K	19.4	19.2	19.2	
Cold leg temperature	K	557.0	559.0	558.6	
Hot leg tr aperature	К	576.4	578.2	577.8	
Boron concentration	ppm	694	1.	44.	
REACTOR VESSEL					
Power level	MW	48.7	48.7	48.7	
PRESSURISER					
Steam volume	m3	0.40 a	0.473	0.437	
Liquid volume	m3	0.53 a	0.515	0.551	
Liquid temperature	K	615.2	613.4	613.5	
Pressure	MPa	14.98	14.91	14.91	
Liquid levei	m	1.00	0.975	1.039	
STEAM GENERATOR					
Liquid level	m	3.15	3.15	3.15	
Liquid temperature	K	544.4	544.6	544.5	
Pressure	MPa	5.61	5.62	5.62	
Mass flow	kg/s	25.7	25.45	25.46	

Table 1 Initial Conditions for Experiment L9-3

a As given in Experiment Data Report; revised estimates are 0.45 and 0.55 m3 for vapour and liquid volumes.

4

	TIME (seconds)			
EVENT		CALCULATED		
	ACTUAL	PRELIM	REVISED	
Main feedwater pump tripped off	0.0	0.0	0.0	
Pressuriser spray valve cycling initiated	29.5	23.0	41.5	
Steam generator MSCV closed	67.3	67.3 a	67.6 b	
Experiment primary PORV opened	73.8	60.2 c	67.0 d	
Pressuriser liquid level reached top of	90.0		95.6	
indicating range (1.83 m above bottom)				
Steam generator liquid level reached bottom	94.5	60.6	68.1	
of indicating range (0.25 m above bottom)				
Experiment primary SRV opened	96.8	64.5 c	75.0 d	
Experiment primary SRV closed	107	76.4 c	82.8 d	
Experiment primary PORV closed	123	1	159.2 d	
Experiment primary PORV cycling initiated	125.4		163.1 d	
Experiment PORV cycling terminated	208	increase in the second	e	
End of AT"VS phase / start of recovery	601.1			
End of calculation	a see a		600.0	

Table 2 Loquence of Events for Experiment 1.9-3

a setpoint defined by time

b setpoint defined by SG pressure

c setpoint defined by nominal pressure

d setpoint defined by actual pressure

e was still cycling at 600 s

Figures



.





FIGURE 2 - RELAP 5/MOD 2 NODING DIAGRAM FOR CALCULATION OF LOFT TEST L9-3

AEEW-R2435



Figure 3. Comparison of LOFT Core reactivity with Sizewell '3' at End-of-life



Figure 4. 19-3 HOI LEG PRESSURE

- 4 (

208

AEEW-R2435

9

0

19-



- 20



Winfrith

0



AEEW-R2435

22.

· · · · ·

3



Figure 8. L9-3 REACTOR POWER VS COOLANT TEMPERATURE

AEEW-R2435



AEEW-R2435

-24 -

L9-3 STEAN GENERATOR PRE JSURE

6

Figure



AEEW-R2435

.....



Figure 11. L9-3 STEAM FLOW

-26-

AEEW-R2435



1

Y.

l

AEEW-R2435

0

-



Winfrith



-29-

Winfrith



30-



AEEW-R2435

0

A STATE OF A

ļ

-3

X

•40

112 55

Winfrith



4

-

1910

· · ·

AEEW-R2435

(注意本)

- 3

winfrith

e e

9

5 18



1

• • •

- 15

82

AEEW-R2435

1 st

-33-

Sugar 1



-34-



3

•

.

•

1

AEEW-R2435

-

14 A.

35-

- -



.

N. Martin

AEEW-R2435

1. 1

1 J . .

• • • -36



ないの

語の語



AEEW-R2435

-38-



.

10

the second second

一日本 ちょうちょう

.94

in.

AEEW-R2435

-

......

at the second

A ...

-39-



Sec. 2

AEEW-R2435

•

Winfrith]



0

AEEW-R.1435

41-



AEEW-R2435

-42

Underth

- Alter a

0

0



1.000

1.1

. ø ,

AEEW-R2435

• . .

C

-43-

: 7



DISTRIBUTION

all state

AEE WINFRITH, DORCHESTER,	DORSET, DT2 8DH
Dr I H Gibson Mr J M Rogers Mr A J Smethurst Mr G J Ward Mr J Sherwin Mr I Brittain Dr A J Wickett Dr C G Richards Mrs S Newbon Mr R Potter Dr W M Bryce	236/A32 226/A32 234/A32 239/A32 245/A32 201/A32 235/A32 260/A32 232/A32 209/A32 262/A32
Dr J C Birchley (4)	230/A32
Mr J Fell	1 Melstock Avenue, Dorchester, Dorset

CEGB, GDCD, BARNETT WAY, BARNWOOD, GLOUCESTER, GL4 7RS

Mr N A J Butt Mr I L Hirst Mr P C Hall Dr K H Ardron

CEGE, BERKELEY NUCLEAR LASS ATORIES (BNL), BERKELEY, GLOUCESTER, GL13 9PB

Dr J Young

CEGB, CENTRAL ELECTRICITY RESEARCH LABORATORIES (CERL), KELVIN AVENUE, LEATHEPHEAD, SUPREY

Mr M W E Coney Dr J Putney

CEGB, MARCHWOOD ENGINEERING LABORATORIES (MEL), SOUTHAMPTON, SO4 42B

Mr B Chojnewski

CEGE, CISD, 85 PARK STREET, LONDON, SEL

Mr L Wilson Mr G France

CEGB, NHSD, COURTENAY HOUSE, 18 WARWICK LAND, LONDON, EC4 4EB

Dr P R Farmer Mr A L Willetts Mr J R Harrison

AEEW-R 2435

Distribution-1

CEGE, PMT, BOOTHS HALL, CHELFORD ROAD, KNUTSFORD, CHESHIRE, WA16 802

Mr P Chappell Mr P Lightfoot

UKAEA, SPD, CLF 010, WIGSHAW LANE, CULCHETH, WARRINGTON

Mr J G Moore Mr R Cox

UKAEA. HARWELL, C35, 329, AERE HARWELL, OXFORDSHIRE, OX11 ORA

Dr D Hicks Dr G F Hewitt

SOUTH OF SCOTLAND ELECTRICITY BOARD (ESEE), CATHCART HOUSE, INVERLAIR AVENUE, GLASGOW, SCOTLAND

Mr J R P Eaton

NATIONAL NUCLEAR CORPORATION (NNC), BOOTHS HALL, CHELFORD ROAD, KNUTSFORD, CHESHIRE, WA16 8QZ

Mr K T Routledre Mr A Maccabee Reports Library (4)

NATIONAL INSTALLATIONS INSPECTORATE (N11), HEALTH AND SAFETY EXECUTIVE, ST PFTERS HOUSE, STANLEY PRECINCT, BALLIOL ROAD, BOOTLE, L20 3LZ

Dr S A Harbisor Mr J F Campbel. Mr C Potter

UNITED STATES NUCLEAR RESEARCH CORPORATION (USNRC), 5650 NICHOLSON LANE, ROCK ILLE, MARYLAND 20814, USA

Mr D Bessette (4) Dr L Shotkin

EG&G (IDAHO) INC, PO BOX 1625, IDAHO FALLS, ID 83415, USA

Mr G E Wilson Mr G W Johnsen Mr T R Charlton Dr W L Weaver

LIBRARIES

Dounreay(1)Springfields(2)Harwell(2)Windscale(2)Risley(4)Winfrith(6)

istribution-2

역사는 FORM 335 (2-89) MINGAR 1102 3301, 3202 원	U.S. NUCLEAR REGULATOR 131.10GRAPHIC DATA SHEET (See instructions on the inverse)	Y COMMISSION 1. REPORT JUNBER (Assigned by NRC, Add Vol., Supn., Re., and Addendum Numbers, Harry) NUREG/IA-0058 AEEU, D242E
Z. TITLE AND SUBTITLE		NL. W-R/400
RELAPS/MOD2 Analyst	s of LOFT Experiment L9-3	3. DATE REPORT PUBLISHED MONTH VEAR April 1992 4 Fin or grant number Å4682
LC Birchley		6 TYPE OF PEPORT
sto, all chief		7. PLRIOD COVERED Incluse Cated
PERFORMING ORGANIZATION -	NAME AND ADDRESS 111 NRC, provint Divis. 1 Office of Region, U.S. N.	uclear Regulatory Commission, and mailing address: If contractor, provid
United Kingdom Ator Dorchester, Dorset United Kingdom	nic Energy Authority , DT2 8PH	a MBC Deserve Office in Baden 1/8 Nuclear Readings Commission
Office of Nuclear R U.S. Nuclear Regula Washington, DC 205	egulatory Research tery Commission 55	
10. SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES	an tanàn mandritry no managana amin' am	nen mennen hendeligen der einen einen der einen der eine der eine der einen der ein
An analysis has without trip, in o Experiment L9-5 the reactor remain covered for prime primary fluid res pressure increase mismatch between modated by cycle Comparison between RELAP5/MOD2 analysis LOFT Experiment L9	been performed of LOFT Experiment L9-3, a lo rder to support the validation of RELAP5/MOD2. exhibited a rapid boildown of the steam generate ring close to its initial power until the steam generate ray to secondary heat hansfer to be significantly re- ulted in a reduction in power induced by the mode ed to the safety relief valve setpoint, before the en primary system heat input and heat removal vi- ing of the pilot operated relief valve (PORV). ween calculation and data shows generally good a Weaknesses in the code's treatment of interphase of a factor. The overprediction of interphase drag is in the steam generator is i also, perhaps, to or e tubes were being uncovered. There is indicated close to equilibrium during spray operation proved a viable means of representing the power it worth or phrase that will suite reservices or locating the most of the overprediction of interphase drag is in the steam generator is indicated a close to equilibrium during spray operation proved a viable means of representing the power.	ass-of-feedwater anticipated transient or, following the loss of feed, with evator tubes became sufficiently un- educed. The ensuing heat up of the rator feedback. The primary system fall in reactor power allowed the a the steam generator to be accom- greement, though with discrepancies drag and in the representation of the ata, particularly in the steam genera- ed to a tendency to underpredict the verpredict the steam generator heat in that the pressuriser vapour region n. The point kinetics model in history for this transient.

THIS DOCUMENT WAS PRINTED USING RECYCLED PAPER

UNITED STATES MUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION WASHINGTON, D.C. 20555

OFFICIAL BUSINESS PENALTY FOR PRIVATE USE, \$300 SPECIAL FOURTH-CLASS RATE POSTAGE AND FEES PAID USNRC PERMIT NO. G-67

RELAPS/MOD2 ANALYSIS OF LOFT EXPERIMENT L9-3

APKIL 1992

120555139531 1 1ANICI US NECTOAD. 1 1ANICI TESTPOR NURES WASHINGTON DC 2055

20555